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STATE OF M CH GAN
COUNTY OF OTTAVA

IN RE:  FOXWOOD NO. 2 DRAIN

BOARD OF DETERM NATI ON

Proceedi ngs comenced at 10:45 a.m, on Thursday,
August 26, 2021, at the Holland Charter Township Fire
Departnent, Station #1, Holland, M chigan, held before
Marjorie A Covey, CSR-2616, RPR, Certified Shorthand

Reporter and Notary Public.

APPEARANCES:

Joe Bush, Otawa County Water Resources Comm ssioner

5SS

Sara Hirst, Secretary

Ri ch Vander Kl ok, Board Chai r nan
Ken Souter, Board Secretary
Todd Wbl ters, Board Menber

SSS

Lucas Ti nmer, Engineer, Prein & Newhof
Ken Bosnmm, Engi neer, Prein & Newhof

Doug Kui per, Holland Charter Townshi p Finance Director

s 5 5%

Jerry A man, OQtawa County Road Conm ssion
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Hol | and, M chi gan
August 26, 2021 - 10:45 a.m
PROCEEDI NGS

WATER RESOURCES COW JCE BUSH. Well good norni ng,
everyone. |'mJoe Bush, the Otawa County WAter Resources
Conmi ssi oner .

| appreciate you taking the tinme this norning to
kind of figure out what you' re doing being invited to the
firehouse for a Board of Determination. Again, being the
Drai n Conmi ssi oner and WAter Resources Conm ssioner, this is
kind of one of the job duties that we get to do is hold a
Board of Determ nation, which is a public hearing, which is
because we' ve been working with Holland Townshi p on orphan
dr ai ns.

And orphan drains, they're in all of the townships,
and | have the whole county, so all 17 townships, six cities
and a village. There is a |lot of orphan drains that are
around. And what an orphan neans is nobody has jurisdiction
over it, not the township, neither does the road conm ssion,
nei t her does the county.

So this was devel oped prior to having it under ny
jurisdiction. And so what they do nowadays is have a
petition. And we have to notify everybody within the drain
district or watershed. Everyone lives in a watershed or

drain district, you can call it whichever you want, but

OBrien & Bails Court Reporting and Video
(800) 878-8750 - M chigan Firm No. 8029




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

everybody's water goes sonewhere. So if you got a mailing,
typically that's why because your water runs sonmewhere that
we're tal king about, and this is the Foxwood No. 2 Drain.

So we've been doing so nmany of these orphans and
there is so many of themover the years with all the
devel opnent, we're trying to catch up and get these under
sonebody' s jurisdiction.

Wll to do that, we need a petition. And we've
been getting those petitions quite regularly from Hol | and
Township. | can either be petitioned fromthe people or the
township through Drain Code, and this is all through state
law. And this is just all part of the process, the |ega
process, to notify people, let themknow they're in the
district, let them know we're having a public hearing.

That way people can tell us if there is issues in
this particular watershed or drain district that we should
know about. The only way we usually find out is an angry
person in a flooding situation, and then we hate when we have
to say, it's an orphan, nobody owns that drain. Nobody owns
the infrastructure. They call the road comm ssion, they say,
call the county, talk to the township

And we all | ook at each other and go, you know
what, it's kind of an orphan system you know.

So Hol I and Townshi p has been taking it and their

board approved, hey, let's start petitioning Joe, the Water
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Resour ces Conmi ssioner to hold Boards of Determ nations to
establ i sh these orphan drains.

So in the process, | have to appoint a three-pane
board, and this three-panel board has no affiliation with the
Hol | and Townshi p board, the planning conm ssion. They don't
own any properties in this set area that we're tal ki ng about
today. So they don't have rental properties or a hone there.
O they don't have flooding issues there because they don't
live there.

I want to nmake that clear, they don't have
jurisdiction in this particular drain district. Their job
totally today is to say, yes, this should be under Joe's
jurisdiction for the future nai ntenance of this.

Currently we don't know of any issues that's out
there. W don't have a project. They're not voting on a
project. The cost is getting picked up today through Hol |l and
Township. This is all part of establishing orphan drains.

So they want to do it, they said we're going to
pick up the cost, there is no cost to the public or this area
to do today's neeting.

Agai n Hol Il and Townshi p has been very proactive in
just trying to get all these orphan drains, and we probably,
| bet we're working on 60 to 70 of these we've done in the
| ast eight years. This is ny third termbeing elected to

this position, so this is just one of the many jobs that I
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have jurisdiction over is getting petitions and hol di ng
Boards of Determ nations.

Again, | appoint this board. Holland Township has
no affiliation with these three gentlenen. Neither does any
of the comnmttees or boards that Holland Townshi p has, or
subcommittees. These are all just strictly appointed through
me t hrough Drain Code.

So I'll go ahead and do some ot her introductions
and then we'll get into the business of giving the three
gentl ermen the oath.

We have Lucas Timer and Ken Bosnma, they're from
Prein & Newhof. They do a |ot of these orphan drains. They
kind of do a prelimnary |ook-over of what's out there,
what's goi ng on.

Currently we don't have any issues that's known to
us before the neeting. So, again, public hearings, we
usually find out there could be issues we don't know about,
whi ch i s anot her reason why we hold these.

The other one is these neetings are all court
recorded. W have Margie with us today, she's done a | ot of
these for nme over the years. And this is not required by
law, but | do this because we do post the minutes on the
website later. W're very transparent. It's word for word,
its not sonebody's handwiting and did they interpret what

they said. This is word for word as |I'mtal ki ng.
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W will have public coment tinme |later. Make sure
you speak your nane and address and speak |loudly so she can
hear it, and your comment, if you have issues or not. So
again this is not required by law, but I do it so you can
actually go back on the website later and read it.

Then we have Jerry O man, he's fromthe road
comm ssion. And he is usually in favor of all these because
there is infrastructure in the road, and the water goes
somewhere, but the infrastructure in the road does take on
private and public waters, and water goes sonewhere. And
usually the road comm ssion is a good partner to work with in
trying to resolve these issues down the road. But if it's
not under our jurisdiction, it's kind of hard to fix problens
we don't know about or we don't have control over.

So again | appreciate your tinme listening to
today's neeting and how it goes. So be sure to speak up
because this is how we determne the need, if it's necessary
or not based on public conment.

So again, these three gentlenen have been doi ng
these neetings for quite a few years for ne. They' ve been
i nvolved in local governnent. A lot of themare either
current supervisors of townships or been on townshi p boards.
And one of them has actually worked for the road comm ssion
for 38 years.

"Il start with himfirst, I'll work fromright to
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left. Ken Souter has worked for the road conmm ssion, he's
retired now, but 38 years as an engi neer for the road
conmi Sssi on.

Then we have M. Rich VanderKl ok. He is kind of
sem -retired but he was on the CGeorgetown Townshi p board for
many, many years. He understands Drain Code, drainage,
infrastructure. And his purpose today is not for a project,
but do we see this necessary or not to be under Joe Bush's
ki nd of departnment noving forward.

And then we have Todd Wl ters who is the current
supervi sor at Aive Township. And he's also involved in many
ot her boards, but he's been doing this for ne for quite a few
years as wel | .

| appoi nt people who understand, nunber one, their
job today is do they see a necessity or not based on
testinmony or the township's conmments or road comm ssion's
comments. And to say, you know, it's not a cost today, there
Is not a project, and their job isn't to decide that. It's
just, is it necessary or not. That's why we're here.

So I'll give these three gentlenen the oath and
they will run the nmeeting fromthere on out.

Gent |l enen, pl ease raise your right hand.

Do you each solemly swear that you will faithfully
perform and di scharge the duties inposed upon you as required

by | aw as nenbers of the Board of Determ nation appointed by
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the Otawa County Water Resources Comm ssioner to determ ne

the necessity to |ocate, establish and construct the proposed

Foxwood No. 2 Drain located in Holland Charter Township in

said county, gentlenen?

that Rich

that Rich

secretary.

BOARD MEMBER TODD WOLTERS: | do.
BOARD MEMBER RI CH VANDER KLCK: | do.
BOARD MEMBER KEN SCQUTER: | do.

WATER RESOURCES COMWM JCE BUSH: Thank you.

BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER: |'d like to nmake a notion
serve as chai rman.

BOARD MEMBER TCODD WOLTERS:  Support.

BOARD MEMBER RI CH VANDER KLOK: Moved and supported
serve as chai rman.

Those in favor, say aye.

BOARD MEMBER TODD WOLTERS:  Aye.

BOARD MEMBER RI CH VANDER KLOK: Aye.

BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER: Aye.

BOARD CHAIR RI CH VANDER KLOK: That is carri ed.

Then | make the notion that Ken Souter serve as

BOARD MEMBER TCODD WOLTERS:  Support.

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLOK: And it's support ed.
Al those in favor, say aye.

BOARD MEMBER TCODD WOLTERS:  Aye.

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLOK:  Aye.
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BOARD MEMBER KEN SOQUTER: Aye.

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLOK: That is carri ed.

W' ve already tal ked about the role and function of
the board as Joe had nentioned it to you, and the procedura
history. And so I'mgoing to ask Lucas if he'd give us the
engi neering presentation.

ENG NEER LUCAS TI MMER: Thank you, Rich.

My nanme is Lucas Timmer. | am an engineer with
Prein & Newhof, and we were the engineering firmthat was
hired to do sonme of the prelimnary engi neering work that's
required for the Foxwood No. 2 Drain.

So as Joe nentioned, the Foxwood No. 2 Drain is an
orphan drain. This is an existing stormwater drain system
that is without an authorized | ocal and county governnent al
jurisdiction, and it |acks the adm nistrative, procedural and
fundi ng nechani sns to address current or future needs for
mai nt enance and i nprovenents.

So essentially this systemright now is considered
a private or an orphan system So if there are ever any
i ssues, nobody owns it. And this process today is to get it
setup so that it becones part of the public system

Hol | and Township filed a petition to establish this
drai nage district on May 20, 2021. And we are here today, as
Joe nentioned, for a Board of Determ nation, which is part of

that Drain Code process when you |l ook to establish a county
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drain.

So sone of the prelimnary engineering work that we
started with was that we reviewed utility record draw ngs and
pl at maps.

So we reviewed the stormwater -- the storm water
record draw ngs, sanitary sewer and water nmain, just to get a
feel for your nei ghborhood and how it was setup for high
poi nts and | ow poi nts.

W al so reviewed plat maps. So we revi ewed
Ri chl and Estates which was established in 1998, Foxwood No.

1, which was established in 1991, and Brookwood Sub and
Brookwood Sub No. 1, which were both in 1963.

W then used sone of that data fromthe record
drawi ngs and the plat maps to delineate a drainage district.
So a drainage district is essentially a watershed.

I[f you're in the drainage district, it's considered
that you contribute runoff to the storm sewer infrastructure.
If you're outside of the drainage district, thenit's
consi dered that you do not contribute runoff to the proposed
county drain. And we're able to delineate this drainage
di strict using county G S contour data which is one-foot
contour data which gives us an idea on what the grades are in
the area. W're also able to use aerials.

We then visited the site to |ocate drain

i nfrastructure and confirm drai nage patterns.

OBrien & Bails Court Reporting and Video
(800) 878-8750 - M chigan Firm No. 8029

10




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

So this next slide shows the proposed drainage
district. The proposed drainage district is here inred. As
you can see, this proposed drainage district also takes up a
sub district which is an existing county drain. So if anyone
in this audience lives in Richland Estates, Richland Estates
is already an established county drain. So this was an
established county drain in 1998, it was part of the plat
process. So all drain infrastructure in Ri chland Estates was
establi shed as a county drain.

I nterestingly enough, Foxwood No. 2 was established
in 1991, so seven years before Richland Estates. R chland
Estates, this green infrastructure here, this green |line
whi ch shows the storm sewer infrastructure, connects to
Foxwood No. 1 -- I'msorry, Foxwood No. 2. Their
i nfrastructure was never established as a county drain.

So if anything ever happened to Foxwood No. 2 and
the pipe were to get blocked off, it would inpact everyone in
Ri chl and Estates, which then, if this was not a county drain,
there woul d be no governnental jurisdiction attached to the
Foxwood No. 2 infrastructure.

So that's why we're here today is to get this blue
i nfrastructure here established as county drain.

So the next slide just shows an aerial of the
drai nage district, which once again is here in red.

Ri chl and Estates, their drainage district here is
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shown in green.

So followng this presentation, we'll have a tine
for public testinony. As Joe and the board nentioned, please
mention your name and address so that it can be recorded by
Mar gi e.

And then the board will then determ ne after
hearing fromyou guys if there is any necessity, if it is
necessary to establish this as a county drain.

So if it's deened necessary to establish all that
blue infrastructure that | showed on the previous nmap as
county drain, then it wll becone part of the county drain
system and there will be governnental jurisdiction
responsible for it.

I f deened not necessary by the board, then no
further action will occur. The systemthen will remain as an
orphan or a private system

So this slide here has a | ot of |anguage and | want
to junp down to nunber two here, because this is an
i nportant, sone inportant information for you guys.

If this drain is deened necessary by the board, and
we find out today frompublic testinony that there is no
dr ai nage i ssues, no issues are going on, then what happens at
the end of this is Holland Township covers all the costs to
pay for this to becone an established county drain, and

that's exactly what Joe nenti oned.
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However, if the drain is deened necessary by the
board, and in public testinony we find out that there are
sonme significant flooding issues or other issues that need to
be addressed, then a project would incur.

And part of this project setup is that OCCARC woul d
use P & Nto review feasible projects to i nprove drai nage.
W' Il then go through the design process for drainage
mai nt enance and i nprovenents.

So we determ ne what project nake sense. Joe
doesn't want us to do a Cadillac project when it just
requires a Yugo fix. Joe is an elected official, he wants to
make sure that the project nakes sense for his electorate.

We then select a project. W do a project design
and survey. |If easenents are required to be -- if easenents
need to be acquired, we would acquire the easenents.

We woul d then go under project bid and
construction. And then there would be this process called a
Day of Review of Apportionnent. So how that works is
assessnments woul d then be sent out, and everyone woul d be
notified of this Day of Review of Apportionnment which is an
ei ght-hour time period that the Drain Code requires people to
come in to talk about their assessnent and apportionmnent.

And those assessnents then would be nmade out to the
O tawa County, O tawa County Road Commi ssion, Holl and

Townshi p, and the property owners that are within the
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drai nage district.

If there were ever any future problens, let's say
there is no problens now but ten years fromnow a storm sewer
col | apses that requires mai ntenance and repair. So how that
repair would occur is there would need to be a petition
from Hol | and Township or fromthe property owners per Drain
Code.

If the project is a small fix, let's say there is a
smal | sinkhol e that needs to be repaired, that would be | ess
than 5,000 per mle, per Drain Code, that allows the county,
per Drain Code, just to take care of the project, wthout the
petition and Board of Determ nation process.

So assessnents for all future projects wll be nmade
to Gtawa County, Otawa County Road Comm ssion, Holl and
Townshi p and property owners.

Thank you.

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLOK: Ckay, thank you,

Lucas.
Any questions or conments, Ken, or Todd?
BOARD SECRETARY KEN SOQUTER: Yeah, Lucas, can
you -- I'ma little dense here. Can you tell ne what

direction all of this flows and where it flows to?
ENG NEER LUCAS Tl MVER: From our review and from
contour data, we were able to determ ne that Ri chl and Est ates

here flows into a storm sewer systemthat connects into the
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proposed Foxwood No. 2.

These | arge properties here drain to the north by,
and they' Il end up getting to this catch basin systemthat's
installed in the backyards of the residents of Foxwood No. 2.

BOARD SECRETARY KEN SOQUTER: And then where does it
to go once it leaves this particul ar area?

ENG NEER LUCAS TI MMER: Good question. So it flows
in this blue infrastructure here in the stormsewer and ends
up flowing north toward the Brower Drain.

BOARD SECRETARY KEN SOUTER: To the Brower Drain.

ENG NEER LUCAS Tl MVER:  Yep.

BOARD SECRETARY KEN SOUTER: Thank you.

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLOK:  Todd?

BOARD MEMBER TODD WOLTERS: No. No questions.

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLOK: Ckay. Before we do
public coment, | don't believe we had a notion to limt
public conmment to three m nutes.

And so |I'Il make that notion.

BOARD MEMBER TODD WOLTERS:  Support .

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLOK: Mved and supported
tolimt public coment to three m nutes.

Those in favor, say aye.

BOARD MEMBER TCDD WOLTERS:  Aye.

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLCK:  Aye.

BOARD SECRETARY KEN SOUTER:  Aye.

OBrien & Bails Court Reporting and Video
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BOARD CHAIR RI CH VANDER KLOK: That is carri ed.

Now we cone to that portion of the neeting where
you as residents have opportunity to speak.

But before that, Jerry fromthe road conm ssion, do
you have any comments that you' d |like to nake?

ROAD COW SSI ON JERRY OLMAN:  This is Jerry d man
with the Otawa County Road Conmi ssion.

I"mnot aware of any issues with the road drai nage
on Holiday Drive.

For the road conmi ssion, we are in favor of
establ i shing these orphan systens and bringing theminto the
Wat er Resources Conm ssioner's control.

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLOK: Ckay. Thank you
Jerry.

And then from Hol | and Township --

HOLLAND TOWNSHI P FI N. DI RECTOR DOUG KUl PERS:  Yes,
Doug Kui per with Holl and Townshi p.

So the township is systematically seeking to bring
all these orphan drains under the jurisdiction of the Water
Resources Conmissioner's office and that is the reason for
the petition before you today.

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLOK: Ckay, thank you.

And so, public comment, the gentleman in the back,
if you woul d state your nanme and your address pl ease.

MR SCOTT NYHU S: Scott Nyhuis, 10125 Hol i day

OBrien & Bails Court Reporting and Video
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Drive.

| guess ny only question right nowis so is the
bl ue proposed or the blue already exist?

ENG NEER LUCAS TI MMER: That's a great question

So the blue, that blue already exists. Al that
storm sewer infrastructure exists, but it's being proposed to
go froma private or an orphan systemto a county drain
system

MR SCOIT NYHU S:  Ckay.

ENG NEER LUCAS TI MVER: Good questi on.

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLOK: Ckay. Yes, ma'am
Your nanme and address, please?

MS. CAROL SOSNOSKI: Carol Sosnoski, |'mat 10325
Hannah Drive, so I'min Richland Estates.

I"ve only lived there since Cctober but |I haven't
noti ced anything that would, you know, seem|ike the drain
systemwas in any way failing.

And it just seens reasonable to ne though that we
woul d get underneath the jurisdiction in case there were to
be sone kind of issue. | don't know about the neighboring
communities, but it seens reasonable to ne that we would go
forward with com ng under the jurisdiction of the Water
Resour ces Conmi ssi oner .

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLCK: Ckay, thank you.

This gentl enmen? Nane and address, please?

OBrien & Bails Court Reporting and Video
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MR. BOB MILDER My nane is Bob Mulder. And | live
at 10079 Holiday Drive. 1've lived there since 1993.

And | know of no water issues there. | know | was
concerned before |I noved in, but the way that system was
setup, there is no water issues in the basenent. | don't
have any issues either.

So I"'mfor this notion, that you do that, because
i f sonething would happen to that main blue |ine going back
there, it would affect all of us.

So anyhow, that's ny coment. I1'mglad to see this
happen, and I'mfor it.

The county drain, | could have flooding fromthe
back side too, but that, with that culvert on 100th Street,
so that's good. So I'd like to say, keep that as it is.

BOARD SECRETARY KEN SOUTER: Good, thank you. Any
comments from-- | think we've gotten everyone.

I would nake a notion then to close the public
comment tinme.

I's that supported?

BOARD MEMBER TCODD WOLTERS: Support ed.

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLOK: Mved and supported
that we close the public coment tine.

Al those in favor, say aye.

BOARD MEMBER TCODD WOLTERS:  Aye.

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLOK:  Aye.
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BOARD SECRETARY KEN SQUTER: Aye.

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLOK:  And now, Ken or
Todd, do you have any coments?

BOARD SECRETARY KEN SOUTER: Well 1'Il go first.
Basically it seens |like it makes total sense, and nost of
t hese have al ways nmade senses that people need a place for --
to call if they got a problem

And working for the road comm ssion, | know |I've
gi ven people the run around on occasi on when | was there
because of the fact that we didn't even know who had
jurisdiction. So if not under the drain conm ssioner, he
woul d send themto Hol |l and Townshi p, or the township, and
they just kind of ran around not know ng what to do. And
that's not really fair.

So to get these under one entity, just nmakes so
much sense to ne that I'mtotally in favor of them

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLOK: Ckay. Todd?

BOARD MEMBER TODD WOLTERS: Yeah, I'min favor of
this proposal as well. | think it will protect the folks in
Richland a little bit nore than where they are at right now
so we can have a little quicker response if something does go
Wr ong.

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLOK: Good. | would agree
with that. And hearing also the public coment, | would make

the notion that the | ocation, establishnent and construction
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of the Foxwood No. 2 Drain, as petitioned on May 21, 2021, is
necessary and conducive to the public health, conveni ence and
wel fare

["ll make that notion, is that supported?

BOARD MEMBER TODD WOLTERS:  Support .

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLOK: Moved and support ed.

Al'l those in favor, say aye.

BOARD MEMBER TCDD WOLTERS:  Aye.

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLCK:  Aye.

BOARD SECRETARY KEN SQUTER: Aye.

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLOK: And that is carried.

Then | want to ask Joe to just nake a comment about
t he appeal s process, if you woul d.

WATER RESOURCES COW JCE BUSH: So | have to say
this at every neeting, at every Board of Determ nation that
i f sonebody wanted to appeal today's decision, you can appea
it through Crcuit Court, and you have ten days fromtoday if

sonmebody would nore than Iikely want to appeal it, you can by

| aw.

Agai n, | appreciate everybody's tinme here this
norni ng. And sone people ask, | put it on the record that,
wel |, does this still happen today? WIlIl from about 2007 to

today, and this is ny third termI'mworking on that |I'm
i nvolved in now, so we do review all the devel opnents. And

anything that's been since under ny jurisdiction since 2013,
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it's been under ny jurisdiction as far as brought into the
drain systemwhen it gets reviewed during the process of
bei ng approved as a plat through the township. W review
every devel opnment technically in OGtawa County for all the
townshi ps, nost of the cities. A couple cities we don't,
they review their own.

But one way or another when it cones under a county
drain system that process is done now, so we don't have to
keep doing these forever. W're just trying to play catch-up
fromthe '70s, '80s, '90s, even back in the '40s and ' 50s.

So we're trying to catch up. It's not about
governnental control, it's just about custoner service and
provi di ng sonething we can help wth down the road. Because
infrastructure will fail at some point because it's only --
it only lasts as long as it can until it needs repaired.

So again, we appreciate your time, thank you.

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLOK: Thank you, Joe.

We are adjourned.

M5. CAROL SOSNOSKI: | just have a question. So do
| understand correctly that you voted in favor of taking it
under the jurisdiction?

BOARD CHAI R RI CH VANDER KLOK: That's correct.

M5. CAROL SOSNCSKI:  And then one ot her question.
You nentioned where people could call if they did have sone

ki nd of energency or situation. Were would they call for
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t hat ?

WATER RESOURCES COW JCE BUSH: The O tawa County
Wat er Resources Conm ssioner office.

MS. CAROL SOSNOSKI:  Ckay.

WATER RESOURCES COW JOCE BUSH. M departnent, or
9-1-1. They know how to get ahold of ne. If it's an
energency, nmeke sure they call ne. Because they're either
going to call the road comm ssion or they're going to call ne
or both. And we'll both show up.

(Board of Determination - Foxwood No. 2 Drain -

adj ourned at 11:10 a.m)
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CERTI FI CATI ON OF COURT REPORTER AND NOTARY PUBLI C

STATE OF M CH GAN )
) SS
COUNTY OF MUSKEGON )

| certify that this transcript, consisting of 23
pages, is a conplete, true and correct record of the Board of

Determ nation - Foxwood No. 2 Drain, held on August 26, 2021.

DATE:  Augpst 430, 2021

Moyt

MARJORI E A. COVEY

M chi gan License CSR-2616
Washi ngton Li cense 20109173
Oregon License 20-0468
[llinois License 084-004911

Notary Public Expires: Cctober 14, 2021, Miskegon
County, Mchigan/Acting in the State of M chigan
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           1                            STATE OF MICHIGAN



           2                             COUNTY OF OTTAWA



           3



           4  IN RE:  FOXWOOD NO. 2 DRAIN



           5          BOARD OF DETERMINATION
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           8             Proceedings commenced at 10:45 a.m., on Thursday,
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           1                 Holland, Michigan



           2                 August 26, 2021 - 10:45 a.m.



           3                             PROCEEDINGS



           4                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  Well good morning,



           5       everyone.  I'm Joe Bush, the Ottawa County Water Resources



           6       Commissioner.



           7                 I appreciate you taking the time this morning to



           8       kind of figure out what you're doing being invited to the



           9       firehouse for a Board of Determination.  Again, being the



          10       Drain Commissioner and Water Resources Commissioner, this is



          11       kind of one of the job duties that we get to do is hold a



          12       Board of Determination, which is a public hearing, which is



          13       because we've been working with Holland Township on orphan



          14       drains.



          15                 And orphan drains, they're in all of the townships,



          16       and I have the whole county, so all 17 townships, six cities



          17       and a village.  There is a lot of orphan drains that are



          18       around.  And what an orphan means is nobody has jurisdiction



          19       over it, not the township, neither does the road commission,



          20       neither does the county.



          21                 So this was developed prior to having it under my



          22       jurisdiction.  And so what they do nowadays is have a



          23       petition.  And we have to notify everybody within the drain



          24       district or watershed.  Everyone lives in a watershed or



          25       drain district, you can call it whichever you want, but
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           1       everybody's water goes somewhere.  So if you got a mailing,



           2       typically that's why because your water runs somewhere that



           3       we're talking about, and this is the Foxwood No. 2 Drain.



           4                 So we've been doing so many of these orphans and



           5       there is so many of them over the years with all the



           6       development, we're trying to catch up and get these under



           7       somebody's jurisdiction.



           8                 Well to do that, we need a petition.  And we've



           9       been getting those petitions quite regularly from Holland



          10       Township.  I can either be petitioned from the people or the



          11       township through Drain Code, and this is all through state



          12       law.  And this is just all part of the process, the legal



          13       process, to notify people, let them know they're in the



          14       district, let them know we're having a public hearing.



          15                 That way people can tell us if there is issues in



          16       this particular watershed or drain district that we should



          17       know about.  The only way we usually find out is an angry



          18       person in a flooding situation, and then we hate when we have



          19       to say, it's an orphan, nobody owns that drain.  Nobody owns



          20       the infrastructure.  They call the road commission, they say,



          21       call the county, talk to the township.



          22                 And we all look at each other and go, you know



          23       what, it's kind of an orphan system, you know.



          24                 So Holland Township has been taking it and their



          25       board approved, hey, let's start petitioning Joe, the Water
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           1       Resources Commissioner to hold Boards of Determinations to



           2       establish these orphan drains.



           3                 So in the process, I have to appoint a three-panel



           4       board, and this three-panel board has no affiliation with the



           5       Holland Township board, the planning commission.  They don't



           6       own any properties in this set area that we're talking about



           7       today.  So they don't have rental properties or a home there.



           8       Or they don't have flooding issues there because they don't



           9       live there.



          10                 I want to make that clear, they don't have



          11       jurisdiction in this particular drain district.  Their job



          12       totally today is to say, yes, this should be under Joe's



          13       jurisdiction for the future maintenance of this.



          14                 Currently we don't know of any issues that's out



          15       there.  We don't have a project.  They're not voting on a



          16       project.  The cost is getting picked up today through Holland



          17       Township.  This is all part of establishing orphan drains.



          18                 So they want to do it, they said we're going to



          19       pick up the cost, there is no cost to the public or this area



          20       to do today's meeting.



          21                 Again Holland Township has been very proactive in



          22       just trying to get all these orphan drains, and we probably,



          23       I bet we're working on 60 to 70 of these we've done in the



          24       last eight years.  This is my third term being elected to



          25       this position, so this is just one of the many jobs that I
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           1       have jurisdiction over is getting petitions and holding



           2       Boards of Determinations.



           3                 Again, I appoint this board.  Holland Township has



           4       no affiliation with these three gentlemen.  Neither does any



           5       of the committees or boards that Holland Township has, or



           6       subcommittees.  These are all just strictly appointed through



           7       me through Drain Code.



           8                 So I'll go ahead and do some other introductions



           9       and then we'll get into the business of giving the three



          10       gentlemen the oath.



          11                 We have Lucas Timmer and Ken Bosma, they're from



          12       Prein & Newhof.  They do a lot of these orphan drains.  They



          13       kind of do a preliminary look-over of what's out there,



          14       what's going on.



          15                 Currently we don't have any issues that's known to



          16       us before the meeting.  So, again, public hearings, we



          17       usually find out there could be issues we don't know about,



          18       which is another reason why we hold these.



          19                 The other one is these meetings are all court



          20       recorded.  We have Margie with us today, she's done a lot of



          21       these for me over the years.  And this is not required by



          22       law, but I do this because we do post the minutes on the



          23       website later.  We're very transparent.  It's word for word,



          24       its not somebody's handwriting and did they interpret what



          25       they said.  This is word for word as I'm talking.
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           1                 We will have public comment time later.  Make sure



           2       you speak your name and address and speak loudly so she can



           3       hear it, and your comment, if you have issues or not.  So



           4       again this is not required by law, but I do it so you can



           5       actually go back on the website later and read it.



           6                 Then we have Jerry Olman, he's from the road



           7       commission.  And he is usually in favor of all these because



           8       there is infrastructure in the road, and the water goes



           9       somewhere, but the infrastructure in the road does take on



          10       private and public waters, and water goes somewhere.  And



          11       usually the road commission is a good partner to work with in



          12       trying to resolve these issues down the road.  But if it's



          13       not under our jurisdiction, it's kind of hard to fix problems



          14       we don't know about or we don't have control over.



          15                 So again I appreciate your time listening to



          16       today's meeting and how it goes.  So be sure to speak up



          17       because this is how we determine the need, if it's necessary



          18       or not based on public comment.



          19                 So again, these three gentlemen have been doing



          20       these meetings for quite a few years for me.  They've been



          21       involved in local government.  A lot of them are either



          22       current supervisors of townships or been on township boards.



          23       And one of them has actually worked for the road commission



          24       for 38 years.



          25                 I'll start with him first, I'll work from right to
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           1       left.  Ken Souter has worked for the road commission, he's



           2       retired now, but 38 years as an engineer for the road



           3       commission.



           4                 Then we have Mr. Rich VanderKlok.  He is kind of



           5       semi-retired but he was on the Georgetown Township board for



           6       many, many years.  He understands Drain Code, drainage,



           7       infrastructure.  And his purpose today is not for a project,



           8       but do we see this necessary or not to be under Joe Bush's



           9       kind of department moving forward.



          10                 And then we have Todd Wolters who is the current



          11       supervisor at Olive Township.  And he's also involved in many



          12       other boards, but he's been doing this for me for quite a few



          13       years as well.



          14                 I appoint people who understand, number one, their



          15       job today is do they see a necessity or not based on



          16       testimony or the township's comments or road commission's



          17       comments.  And to say, you know, it's not a cost today, there



          18       is not a project, and their job isn't to decide that.  It's



          19       just, is it necessary or not.  That's why we're here.



          20                 So I'll give these three gentlemen the oath and



          21       they will run the meeting from there on out.



          22                 Gentlemen, please raise your right hand.



          23                 Do you each solemnly swear that you will faithfully



          24       perform and discharge the duties imposed upon you as required



          25       by law as members of the Board of Determination appointed by
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           1       the Ottawa County Water Resources Commissioner to determine



           2       the necessity to locate, establish and construct the proposed



           3       Foxwood No. 2 Drain located in Holland Charter Township in



           4       said county, gentlemen?



           5                 BOARD MEMBER TODD WOLTERS:  I do.



           6                 BOARD MEMBER RICH VANDER KLOK:  I do.



           7                 BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER:  I do.



           8                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  Thank you.



           9                 BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER:  I'd like to make a motion



          10       that Rich serve as chairman.



          11                 BOARD MEMBER TODD WOLTERS:  Support.



          12                 BOARD MEMBER RICH VANDER KLOK:  Moved and supported



          13       that Rich serve as chairman.



          14                 Those in favor, say aye.



          15                 BOARD MEMBER TODD WOLTERS:  Aye.



          16                 BOARD MEMBER RICH VANDER KLOK:  Aye.



          17                 BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER:  Aye.



          18                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  That is carried.



          19                 Then I make the motion that Ken Souter serve as



          20       secretary.



          21                 BOARD MEMBER TODD WOLTERS:  Support.



          22                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  And it's supported.



          23                 All those in favor, say aye.



          24                 BOARD MEMBER TODD WOLTERS:  Aye.



          25                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  Aye.
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           1                 BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER:  Aye.



           2                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  That is carried.



           3                 We've already talked about the role and function of



           4       the board as Joe had mentioned it to you, and the procedural



           5       history.  And so I'm going to ask Lucas if he'd give us the



           6       engineering presentation.



           7                 ENGINEER LUCAS TIMMER:  Thank you, Rich.



           8                 My name is Lucas Timmer.  I am an engineer with



           9       Prein & Newhof, and we were the engineering firm that was



          10       hired to do some of the preliminary engineering work that's



          11       required for the Foxwood No. 2 Drain.



          12                 So as Joe mentioned, the Foxwood No. 2 Drain is an



          13       orphan drain.  This is an existing storm water drain system



          14       that is without an authorized local and county governmental



          15       jurisdiction, and it lacks the administrative, procedural and



          16       funding mechanisms to address current or future needs for



          17       maintenance and improvements.



          18                 So essentially this system right now is considered



          19       a private or an orphan system.  So if there are ever any



          20       issues, nobody owns it.  And this process today is to get it



          21       setup so that it becomes part of the public system.



          22                 Holland Township filed a petition to establish this



          23       drainage district on May 20, 2021.  And we are here today, as



          24       Joe mentioned, for a Board of Determination, which is part of



          25       that Drain Code process when you look to establish a county
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           1       drain.



           2                 So some of the preliminary engineering work that we



           3       started with was that we reviewed utility record drawings and



           4       plat maps.



           5                 So we reviewed the storm water -- the storm water



           6       record drawings, sanitary sewer and water main, just to get a



           7       feel for your neighborhood and how it was setup for high



           8       points and low points.



           9                 We also reviewed plat maps.  So we reviewed



          10       Richland Estates which was established in 1998, Foxwood No.



          11       1, which was established in 1991, and Brookwood Sub and



          12       Brookwood Sub No. 1, which were both in 1963.



          13                 We then used some of that data from the record



          14       drawings and the plat maps to delineate a drainage district.



          15       So a drainage district is essentially a watershed.



          16                 If you're in the drainage district, it's considered



          17       that you contribute runoff to the storm sewer infrastructure.



          18       If you're outside of the drainage district, then it's



          19       considered that you do not contribute runoff to the proposed



          20       county drain.  And we're able to delineate this drainage



          21       district using county GIS contour data which is one-foot



          22       contour data which gives us an idea on what the grades are in



          23       the area.  We're also able to use aerials.



          24                 We then visited the site to locate drain



          25       infrastructure and confirm drainage patterns.
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           1                 So this next slide shows the proposed drainage



           2       district.  The proposed drainage district is here in red.  As



           3       you can see, this proposed drainage district also takes up a



           4       sub district which is an existing county drain.  So if anyone



           5       in this audience lives in Richland Estates, Richland Estates



           6       is already an established county drain.  So this was an



           7       established county drain in 1998, it was part of the plat



           8       process.  So all drain infrastructure in Richland Estates was



           9       established as a county drain.



          10                 Interestingly enough, Foxwood No. 2 was established



          11       in 1991, so seven years before Richland Estates.  Richland



          12       Estates, this green infrastructure here, this green line



          13       which shows the storm sewer infrastructure, connects to



          14       Foxwood No. 1 -- I'm sorry, Foxwood No. 2.  Their



          15       infrastructure was never established as a county drain.



          16                 So if anything ever happened to Foxwood No. 2 and



          17       the pipe were to get blocked off, it would impact everyone in



          18       Richland Estates, which then, if this was not a county drain,



          19       there would be no governmental jurisdiction attached to the



          20       Foxwood No. 2 infrastructure.



          21                 So that's why we're here today is to get this blue



          22       infrastructure here established as county drain.



          23                 So the next slide just shows an aerial of the



          24       drainage district, which once again is here in red.



          25                 Richland Estates, their drainage district here is
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           1       shown in green.



           2                 So following this presentation, we'll have a time



           3       for public testimony.  As Joe and the board mentioned, please



           4       mention your name and address so that it can be recorded by



           5       Margie.



           6                 And then the board will then determine after



           7       hearing from you guys if there is any necessity, if it is



           8       necessary to establish this as a county drain.



           9                 So if it's deemed necessary to establish all that



          10       blue infrastructure that I showed on the previous map as



          11       county drain, then it will become part of the county drain



          12       system and there will be governmental jurisdiction



          13       responsible for it.



          14                 If deemed not necessary by the board, then no



          15       further action will occur.  The system then will remain as an



          16       orphan or a private system.



          17                 So this slide here has a lot of language and I want



          18       to jump down to number two here, because this is an



          19       important, some important information for you guys.



          20                 If this drain is deemed necessary by the board, and



          21       we find out today from public testimony that there is no



          22       drainage issues, no issues are going on, then what happens at



          23       the end of this is Holland Township covers all the costs to



          24       pay for this to become an established county drain, and



          25       that's exactly what Joe mentioned.
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           1                 However, if the drain is deemed necessary by the



           2       board, and in public testimony we find out that there are



           3       some significant flooding issues or other issues that need to



           4       be addressed, then a project would incur.



           5                 And part of this project setup is that OCWRC would



           6       use P & N to review feasible projects to improve drainage.



           7       We'll then go through the design process for drainage



           8       maintenance and improvements.



           9                 So we determine what project make sense.  Joe



          10       doesn't want us to do a Cadillac project when it just



          11       requires a Yugo fix.  Joe is an elected official, he wants to



          12       make sure that the project makes sense for his electorate.



          13                 We then select a project.  We do a project design



          14       and survey.  If easements are required to be -- if easements



          15       need to be acquired, we would acquire the easements.



          16                 We would then go under project bid and



          17       construction.  And then there would be this process called a



          18       Day of Review of Apportionment.  So how that works is



          19       assessments would then be sent out, and everyone would be



          20       notified of this Day of Review of Apportionment which is an



          21       eight-hour time period that the Drain Code requires people to



          22       come in to talk about their assessment and apportionment.



          23                 And those assessments then would be made out to the



          24       Ottawa County, Ottawa County Road Commission, Holland



          25       Township, and the property owners that are within the







                                         13

�









           1       drainage district.



           2                 If there were ever any future problems, let's say



           3       there is no problems now but ten years from now a storm sewer



           4       collapses that requires maintenance and repair.  So how that



           5       repair would occur is there would need to be a petition



           6       from Holland Township or from the property owners per Drain



           7       Code.



           8                 If the project is a small fix, let's say there is a



           9       small sinkhole that needs to be repaired, that would be less



          10       than 5,000 per mile, per Drain Code, that allows the county,



          11       per Drain Code, just to take care of the project, without the



          12       petition and Board of Determination process.



          13                 So assessments for all future projects will be made



          14       to Ottawa County, Ottawa County Road Commission, Holland



          15       Township and property owners.



          16                 Thank you.



          17                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  Okay, thank you,



          18       Lucas.



          19                 Any questions or comments, Ken, or Todd?



          20                 BOARD SECRETARY KEN SOUTER:  Yeah, Lucas, can



          21       you -- I'm a little dense here.  Can you tell me what



          22       direction all of this flows and where it flows to?



          23                 ENGINEER LUCAS TIMMER:  From our review and from



          24       contour data, we were able to determine that Richland Estates



          25       here flows into a storm sewer system that connects into the







                                         14

�









           1       proposed Foxwood No. 2.



           2                 These large properties here drain to the north by,



           3       and they'll end up getting to this catch basin system that's



           4       installed in the backyards of the residents of Foxwood No. 2.



           5                 BOARD SECRETARY KEN SOUTER:  And then where does it



           6       to go once it leaves this particular area?



           7                 ENGINEER LUCAS TIMMER:  Good question.  So it flows



           8       in this blue infrastructure here in the storm sewer and ends



           9       up flowing north toward the Brower Drain.



          10                 BOARD SECRETARY KEN SOUTER:  To the Brower Drain.



          11                 ENGINEER LUCAS TIMMER:  Yep.



          12                 BOARD SECRETARY KEN SOUTER:  Thank you.



          13                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  Todd?



          14                 BOARD MEMBER TODD WOLTERS:  No.  No questions.



          15                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  Okay.  Before we do



          16       public comment, I don't believe we had a motion to limit



          17       public comment to three minutes.



          18                 And so I'll make that motion.



          19                 BOARD MEMBER TODD WOLTERS:  Support.



          20                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  Moved and supported



          21       to limit public comment to three minutes.



          22                 Those in favor, say aye.



          23                 BOARD MEMBER TODD WOLTERS:  Aye.



          24                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  Aye.



          25                 BOARD SECRETARY KEN SOUTER:  Aye.
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           1                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  That is carried.



           2                 Now we come to that portion of the meeting where



           3       you as residents have opportunity to speak.



           4                 But before that, Jerry from the road commission, do



           5       you have any comments that you'd like to make?



           6                 ROAD COMMISSION JERRY OLMAN:  This is Jerry Olman



           7       with the Ottawa County Road Commission.



           8                 I'm not aware of any issues with the road drainage



           9       on Holiday Drive.



          10                 For the road commission, we are in favor of



          11       establishing these orphan systems and bringing them into the



          12       Water Resources Commissioner's control.



          13                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  Okay.  Thank you,



          14       Jerry.



          15                 And then from Holland Township --



          16                 HOLLAND TOWNSHIP FIN. DIRECTOR DOUG KUIPERS:  Yes,



          17       Doug Kuiper with Holland Township.



          18                 So the township is systematically seeking to bring



          19       all these orphan drains under the jurisdiction of the Water



          20       Resources Commissioner's office and that is the reason for



          21       the petition before you today.



          22                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  Okay, thank you.



          23                 And so, public comment, the gentleman in the back,



          24       if you would state your name and your address please.



          25                 MR. SCOTT NYHUIS:  Scott Nyhuis, 10125 Holiday







                                         16

�









           1       Drive.



           2                 I guess my only question right now is so is the



           3       blue proposed or the blue already exist?



           4                 ENGINEER LUCAS TIMMER:  That's a great question.



           5                 So the blue, that blue already exists.  All that



           6       storm sewer infrastructure exists, but it's being proposed to



           7       go from a private or an orphan system to a county drain



           8       system.



           9                 MR. SCOTT NYHUIS:  Okay.



          10                 ENGINEER LUCAS TIMMER:  Good question.



          11                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  Okay.  Yes, ma'am.



          12       Your name and address, please?



          13                 MS. CAROL SOSNOSKI:  Carol Sosnoski, I'm at 10325



          14       Hannah Drive, so I'm in Richland Estates.



          15                 I've only lived there since October but I haven't



          16       noticed anything that would, you know, seem like the drain



          17       system was in any way failing.



          18                 And it just seems reasonable to me though that we



          19       would get underneath the jurisdiction in case there were to



          20       be some kind of issue.  I don't know about the neighboring



          21       communities, but it seems reasonable to me that we would go



          22       forward with coming under the jurisdiction of the Water



          23       Resources Commissioner.



          24                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  Okay, thank you.



          25                 This gentlemen?  Name and address, please?
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           1                 MR. BOB MULDER:  My name is Bob Mulder.  And I live



           2       at 10079 Holiday Drive.  I've lived there since 1993.



           3                 And I know of no water issues there.  I know I was



           4       concerned before I moved in, but the way that system was



           5       setup, there is no water issues in the basement.  I don't



           6       have any issues either.



           7                 So I'm for this motion, that you do that, because



           8       if something would happen to that main blue line going back



           9       there, it would affect all of us.



          10                 So anyhow, that's my comment.  I'm glad to see this



          11       happen, and I'm for it.



          12                 The county drain, I could have flooding from the



          13       back side too, but that, with that culvert on 100th Street,



          14       so that's good.  So I'd like to say, keep that as it is.



          15                 BOARD SECRETARY KEN SOUTER:  Good, thank you.  Any



          16       comments from -- I think we've gotten everyone.



          17                 I would make a motion then to close the public



          18       comment time.



          19                 Is that supported?



          20                 BOARD MEMBER TODD WOLTERS:  Supported.



          21                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  Moved and supported



          22       that we close the public comment time.



          23                 All those in favor, say aye.



          24                 BOARD MEMBER TODD WOLTERS:  Aye.



          25                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  Aye.
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           1                 BOARD SECRETARY KEN SOUTER:  Aye.



           2                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  And now, Ken or



           3       Todd, do you have any comments?



           4                 BOARD SECRETARY KEN SOUTER:  Well I'll go first.



           5       Basically it seems like it makes total sense, and most of



           6       these have always made senses that people need a place for --



           7       to call if they got a problem.



           8                 And working for the road commission, I know I've



           9       given people the run around on occasion when I was there



          10       because of the fact that we didn't even know who had



          11       jurisdiction.  So if not under the drain commissioner, he



          12       would send them to Holland Township, or the township, and



          13       they just kind of ran around not knowing what to do.  And



          14       that's not really fair.



          15                 So to get these under one entity, just makes so



          16       much sense to me that I'm totally in favor of them.



          17                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  Okay.  Todd?



          18                 BOARD MEMBER TODD WOLTERS:  Yeah, I'm in favor of



          19       this proposal as well.  I think it will protect the folks in



          20       Richland a little bit more than where they are at right now



          21       so we can have a little quicker response if something does go



          22       wrong.



          23                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  Good.  I would agree



          24       with that.  And hearing also the public comment, I would make



          25       the motion that the location, establishment and construction
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           1       of the Foxwood No. 2 Drain, as petitioned on May 21, 2021, is



           2       necessary and conducive to the public health, convenience and



           3       welfare.



           4                 I'll make that motion, is that supported?



           5                 BOARD MEMBER TODD WOLTERS:  Support.



           6                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  Moved and supported.



           7                 All those in favor, say aye.



           8                 BOARD MEMBER TODD WOLTERS:  Aye.



           9                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  Aye.



          10                 BOARD SECRETARY KEN SOUTER:  Aye.



          11                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  And that is carried.



          12                 Then I want to ask Joe to just make a comment about



          13       the appeals process, if you would.



          14                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  So I have to say



          15       this at every meeting, at every Board of Determination that



          16       if somebody wanted to appeal today's decision, you can appeal



          17       it through Circuit Court, and you have ten days from today if



          18       somebody would more than likely want to appeal it, you can by



          19       law.



          20                 Again, I appreciate everybody's time here this



          21       morning.  And some people ask, I put it on the record that,



          22       well, does this still happen today?  Well from about 2007 to



          23       today, and this is my third term I'm working on that I'm



          24       involved in now, so we do review all the developments.  And



          25       anything that's been since under my jurisdiction since 2013,
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           1       it's been under my jurisdiction as far as brought into the



           2       drain system when it gets reviewed during the process of



           3       being approved as a plat through the township.  We review



           4       every development technically in Ottawa County for all the



           5       townships, most of the cities.  A couple cities we don't,



           6       they review their own.



           7                 But one way or another when it comes under a county



           8       drain system, that process is done now, so we don't have to



           9       keep doing these forever.  We're just trying to play catch-up



          10       from the '70s, '80s, '90s, even back in the '40s and '50s.



          11                 So we're trying to catch up.  It's not about



          12       governmental control, it's just about customer service and



          13       providing something we can help with down the road.  Because



          14       infrastructure will fail at some point because it's only --



          15       it only lasts as long as it can until it needs repaired.



          16                 So again, we appreciate your time, thank you.



          17                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  Thank you, Joe.



          18       We are adjourned.



          19                 MS. CAROL SOSNOSKI:  I just have a question.  So do



          20       I understand correctly that you voted in favor of taking it



          21       under the jurisdiction?



          22                 BOARD CHAIR RICH VANDER KLOK:  That's correct.



          23                 MS. CAROL SOSNOSKI:  And then one other question.



          24       You mentioned where people could call if they did have some



          25       kind of emergency or situation.  Where would they call for
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           1       that?



           2                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  The Ottawa County



           3       Water Resources Commissioner office.



           4                 MS. CAROL SOSNOSKI:  Okay.



           5                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  My department, or



           6       9-1-1.  They know how to get ahold of me.  If it's an



           7       emergency, make sure they call me.  Because they're either



           8       going to call the road commission or they're going to call me



           9       or both.  And we'll both show up.



          10               (Board of Determination - Foxwood No. 2 Drain -



          11                  adjourned at 11:10 a.m.)
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1 Hol I and, M chi gan 1 Resources Conmissioner to hold Boards of Determnations to
2 August 26, 2021 - 10:45 a.m 2 establish these orphan drains.
3 PROCEED NGS 3 S0 in the process, | have to appoint a three-panel
4 WATER RESOURCES OO JCE BUSH Vel | good nor ni ng, 4 hoard, and this three-panel board has no affiliation wth the
5 everyone. |'mJoe Bush, the Gitawa Qounty VMter Resources 5 Holland Townshi p board, the planning commission. They don't
6 Commi ssi oner. 6 own any properties in this set area that we're talking about
7 | appreciate you taking the time this norning to 7 today. Sothey don't have rental properties or a home there.
8 kind of figure out what you're doing being invited to the 8 (O they don't have flooding issues there because they don't
9 firehouse for a Board of Deternmination. Again, being the 9 live there.
10 Drain Cormissioner and Viéter Resources Commissioner, thisis 10 | want to make that clear, they don't have
11 kind of one of the job duties that we get to dois hold a 11 jurisdiction in this particular drain district. Their job
12 Board of Determination, which is a public hearing, whichis 12 totally today is to say, yes, this should be under Joe's
13 because ve' ve been working with Holland Township on orphan 13 jurisdiction for the future naintenance of this.
14 drains. 14 Qurrently we don't know of any issues that's out
15 And orphan drains, they'rein all of the townships, 15 there. V¢ don't have a project. They're not voting on a
16 and | have the whole county, so all 17 townships, six cities 16 project. The cost is getting picked up today through Holland
17 and avillage. Thereis alot of orphan drains that are 17 Township. Thisis all part of establishing orphan drains.
18 around. And what an orphan means i s nobody has jurisdiction 18 S they want to doit, they said we're going to
19 over it, not the township, neither does the road commssion, 19 pick up the cost, there is no cost to the public or this area
20 neither does the county. 20 to do today's meeting.
21 So this was devel oped prior to having it under ny 21 Again Hol land Townshi p has been very proactive in
22 jurisdiction. And so what they do nowadays is have a 22 just trying to get all these orphan drains, and we probably,
23 petition. And we have to notify everybody wthin the drain 23 | bet we're working on 60 to 70 of these we've done in the
24 district or watershed. Everyone lives in a watershed or 24 last eight years. Thisis ny third termbeing elected to
25 draindistrict, you can call it whichever you want, but 25 this position, so thisis just one of the nany jobs that |
Page 3 Page 5
1 everybody's water goes somewhere. Soif you got a mailing, 1 have jurisdiction over is getting petitions and hol di ng
2 typically that's why because your water runs sonewhere that 2 Boards of Determnations.
3 we're talking about, and this is the Foxwood No. 2 Drain. 3 Again, | appoint this board. Holland Township has
4 So we' ve been doing so many of these orphans and 4 no affiliation with these three gentlemen. Neither does any
5 there is so many of themover the years vith all the 5 of the committees or boards that Holland Township has, or
6 devel opnent, we're trying to catch up and get these under 6 subcommittees. These are all just strictly appointed through
7 sonebody' s jurisdiction. 7 e through Drain Code.
8 Véll to do that, we need a petition. And we've 8 S 1'I1 go ahead and do some other introductions
9 been getting those petitions quite regularly fromHolland 9 and then we'll get into the business of giving the three
10 Township. | can either be petitioned fromthe people or the 10  gentlemen the oath.
11 township through Drain Gode, and this is all through state 1 V¢ have Lucas Timmer and Ken Bosna, they're from
12 law And thisis just all part of the process, the |egal 12 Prein & Newhof. They do a lot of these orphan drains. They
13 process, to notify people, let themknowthey're in the 13 kind of do a prelininary |ook-over of what's out there,
14 district, let themknow we're having a public hearing. 14 what's going on.
15 That way people can tell us if there is issuesin 15 Qurrently we don't have any issues that's known to
16 this particular watershed or drain district that we should 16 us before the meeting. So, again, public hearings, ve
17 know about. The only way we usual Iy find out is an angry 17 usually find out there could be issues we don't know about,
18 personin a flooding situation, and then we hate when ve have 18 which is another reason why we hold these.
19 tosay, it's an orphan, nobody owns that drain. Nobody owns 19 The other one is these meetings are all court
20 theinfrastructure. They call the road comission, they say, 20 recorded. V¢ have Margie with us today, she's done a lot of
21 call the county, talk to the township. 21 these for me over the years. And this is not required by
22 And we all look at each other and go, you know 22 law but | do this because we do post the minutes on the
23 what, it's kind of an orphan system you know 23 website later. \é're very transparent. It's word for word,
24 So Hol land Townshi p has been taking it and their 24 its not sonebody' s handwriting and did they interpret what
25 hoard approved, hey, let's start petitioning Joe, the Véter 25 they said. Thisis word for word as |' mtalking.
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Page 6 Page 8
1 Vé will have public conment tine later. Mke sure 1 the Gtawa Gounty Veter Resources Commissioner to determ ne
2 you speak your name and address and speak |oudly so she can 2 the necessity to locate, establish and construct the proposed
3 hear it, and your comment, if you have issues or not. So 3 Foxwood No. 2 Drain located in Holland Charter Township in
4 againthisisnot required by law but | doit so you can 4 said county, gentlemen?
5 actually go back on the website later and read it. 5 BOARD MEMBER TADD WALTERS: | do.
6 Then ve have Jerry Qman, he's fromthe road 6 BOARD MEVBER R CH VANDER KLXK: | do.
7 commission. And heis usually in favor of all these because 7 BOARD MEVBER KEN SIUTER | do.
8 thereis infrastructure in the road, and the vater goes 8 VATER RESORCES OOW JCE BUSH  Thank you.
9 sonewhere, but the infrastructure in the road does take on 9 BOARD MEVBER KEN SQUTER 1" d like to make a notion
10 private and public waters, and water goes somewhere. And 10 that Rch serve as chairman.
11 usually the road comission is a good partner to work within 1 BOARD MEVBER TCDD WILTERS:  Support.
12 trying to resol ve these issues down the road. But if it's 12 BOARD MEVBER R CH VANDER KLOK:  Moved and supported
13 not under our jurisdiction, it's kind of hard to fix problens 13 that Rch serve as chairnan.
14 we don't know about or we don't have control over. 14 Those in favor, say aye.
15 So again | appreciate your tine listening to 15 BOARD MEVBER TADD WILTERS:  Aye.
16 today's meeting and howit goes. So be sure to speak up 16 BOARD MEVBER R CH VANDER KLCK:  Aye.
17 because this is how we determine the need, if it's necessary 17 BOARD MEMBER KEN SQUTER ~ Aye.
18 or not based on public coment. 18 BOARD CHAIR R CH VANDER KLCK:  That i's carried.
19 So again, these three gentlenen have been doing 19 Then | nake the notion that Ken Souter serve as
20 these neetings for quite a fewyears for ne. They've been 20 secretary.
21 involved inlocal government. Alot of themare either 21 BOARD MEMBER TCDD WLTERS:  Support.
22 current supervisors of townships or been on townshi p boards. 22 BOARD CHAR R CH VANDER KLCK: And it"s support ed.
23 And one of themhas actually worked for the road comm ssion 23 Al those in favor, say aye.
24 for 38 years. 24 BOARD MEMBER TCDD WILTERS:  Aye.
25 ["Il start with himfirst, 1'l1 work fromright to 25 BOARD CHAIR R (H VANDER KLCK:  Aye.

Page 7 Page 9
1 left. Ken Souter has worked for the road commission, he's 1 BOARD MEMBER KEN SQUTER  Aye.
2 retired now but 38 years as an engineer for the road 2 BOARD CHAIR R (H VANDER KLCK:  That is carried.
3 commission. 3 Vi¢' ve already tal ked about the role and function of
4 Then we have M. Rch VanderKlok. Heis kind of 4 the board as Joe had mentioned it to you, and the procedural
5 sem-retired but he was on the Georgetown Townshi p board for 5 history. And sol'mgoing to ask Lucas if he'd give us the
6 mny, nany years. He understands Drain Code, drainage, 6 engineering presentation.
7 infrastructure. And his purpose today is not for a project, 7 ENG NEER LUCAS TTMER  Thank you, R ch.
8 but do we see this necessary or not to be under Joe Bush's 8 M nane is Lucas Timmer. | aman engineer wth
9 kind of department moving forwerd. 9 Prein & Newhof, and we were the engineering firmthat vas
10 And then we have Todd Vil ters who is the current 10 hired to do sone of the prelimnary engineering work that's
11 supervisor at Qive Township. And he's also involved in many 11 required for the Foxwood No. 2 Drain.
12 other boards, but he's been doing this for ne for quite a few 12 S0 as Joe nentioned, the Foxwood No. 2 Drainis an
13 years as well. 13 orphan drain. This is an existing stormwater drain system
14 | appoint peopl e who understand, nunber one, their 14 that is wthout an authorized local and county governnental
15 jobtoday is do they see a necessity or not based on 15 jurisdiction, and it lacks the admnistrative, procedural and
16 testimony or the township's comments or road commission's 16  funding mechani sns to address current or future needs for
17 comments. And to say, you know it's not a cost today, there 17 maintenance and i nprovenents.
18 isnot aproject, and their jobisn't to decide that. It's 18 So essentially this systemright nowis considered
19 just, is it necessary or not. That's why we're here. 19 aprivate or an orphan system Soif there are ever any
20 So 1"l give these three gentlenen the oath and 20 issues, nobody owns it. And this process today is to get it
21 they will run the meeting fromthere on out. 21 setup so that it becomes part of the public system
22 Gent | emen, please raise your right hand. 22 Hol 'and Township filed a petition to establish this
23 Do you each sol emnly swear that you will faithfully 23 drainage district on My 20, 2021. And we are here today, as
24 performand di scharge the duties inposed upon you as required 24 Joe mentioned, for a Board of Determnation, whichis part of
25 by lawas nenbers of the Board of Determination appointed by 25 that Drain Gode process when you ook to establish a county
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Page 10 Page 12
1 drain 1 shown in green.
2 So sone of the prelimnary engineering work that we 2 So followng this presentation, we'll have a tine
3 started with was that we reviewed utility record draw ngs and 3 for public testimony. As Joe and the board nentioned, please
4 plat naps. 4 nention your name and address so that it can be recorded by
5 S0 ve reviewed the stormwvater -- the stormwater 5 Mrgie
6 record drawings, sanitary sewer and water main, just to get a 6 And then the board will then deternmine after
7 feel for your neighborhood and how it was setup for high 7 hearing fromyou guys if there is any necessity, if it is
8 points and | ow points. 8 necessary to establish this as a county drain.
9 Vié also revieved plat maps. So ve reviewed 9 Soif it's deemed necessary to establish all that
10 Richland Estates which was established in 1998, Foxwood Nb. 10 blue infrastructure that | showed on the previous nap as
11 1, vhich was established in 1991, and Brookwood Sub and 11 county drain, thenit wll become part of the county drain
12 Brookwood Sub No. 1, which were both in 1963. 12 systemand there will be governmental jurisdiction
13 V¢ then used some of that data fromthe record 13 responsible for it.
14 drawings and the plat maps to delineate a drainage district. 14 If deemed not necessary by the board, then no
15 Soadrainage district is essentially a watershed. 15 further action will occur. The systemthen will remain as an
16 If you're in the drainage district, it's considered 16  orphan or a private system
17 that you contribute runoff to the stormsewer infrastructure. 17 So this slide here has a lot of language and | want
18 If you're outside of the drainage district, thenit's 18 to junp down to nunber two here, because this is an
19  considered that you do not contribute runoff to the proposed 19 inportant, sone inportant infornation for you guys.
20 county drain. And we're able to delineate this drainage 20 If this drainis deemed necessary by the board, and
21 district using county @S contour data which is one-foot 21 we find out today frompublic testimony that there is no
22 contour data which gives us an idea on what the grades are in 22 drainage issues, no issues are going on, then what happens at
23 the area. W're also able to use aerials. 23 the end of this is Hlland Township covers all the costs to
24 V¢ then visited the site to locate drain 24 pay for this to become an established county drain, and
25 infrastructure and confirmdrai nage patterns. 25 that's exactly what Joe nentioned.

Page 11 Page 13
1 So this next slide shows the proposed drainage 1 Hovever, if the drain is deemed necessary by the
2 district. The proposed drainage district is hereinred As 2 board, and in public testinony we find out that there are
3 you can see, this proposed drainage district also takes up a 3 some significant flooding issues or other issues that need to
4 sub district whichis an existing county drain. Soif anyone 4 be addressed, then a project woul d incur.
5 inthis audience lives in Rchland Estates, R chiand Estates 5 And part of this project setup is that GOMRC woul d
6 isalready an established county drain. So this vas an 6 use P&Nto reviewfeasible projects to inprove drainage.
7 established county drainin 1998, it was part of the plat 7 W'II then go through the design process for drainage
8 process. So all draininfrastructure in Rchland Estates was 8 maintenance and i nprovenents.
9 established as a county drain. 9 So ve determine what project nake sense. Joe
10 Interestingly enough, Foxwood No. 2 was establ i shed 10 doesn't want us to do a Cadillac project when it just
11 in 1991, so seven years before Rchland Estates. R chland 11 requires a Yugo fix. Joeis an elected official, he wants to
12 Estates, this greeninfrastructure here, this green line 12 nmake sure that the project makes sense for his electorate.
13 which shows the stormsewer infrastructure, connects to 13 V¢ then select a project. Ve do a project design
14 Foxwood No. 1 -- I'msorry, Foxwood No. 2. Their 14 and survey. |If easenents are required to be -- if easenents
15 infrastructure was never established as a county drain. 15 need to be acquired, we woul d acquire the easenents.
16 So if anything ever happened to Foxwood No. 2 and 16 Ve woul d then go under project bid and
17 the pipe vere to get blocked off, it would inpact everyone in 17 construction. And then there woul d be this process called a
18 Rchland Estates, which then, if this was not a county drain, 18  Day of Review of Apportionment. So howthat works is
19 there woul d be no governnental jurisdiction attached to the 19 assessments woul d then be sent out, and everyone woul d be
20 Foxwood No. 2 infrastructure. 20 notified of this Day of Reviewof Apportionnent whichis an
21 So that's why we're here today is to get this blue 21 eight-hour tine period that the Drain Code requires people to
22 infrastructure here established as county drain. 22 come into talk about their assessment and apportionnent.
23 So the next slide just shows an aerial of the 23 And those assessnents then woul d be made out to the
24 drainage district, which once againis herein red. 24 Qtawa Gounty, Qtawa County Road Commission, Holland
25 Rchland Estates, their drainage district hereis 25 Township, and the property owners that are wthin the
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Page 16

1 drainage district. 1 BOARD CHAR R (H VANDER KLCK:  That is carried.

2 If there were ever any future problens, let's say 2 Now vie come to that portion of the neeting where

3 there is no problems now but ten years fromnow a storm sewer 3 you as residents have opportunity to speak

4 collapses that requires maintenance and repair. So how that 4 But before that, Jerry fromthe road commssion, do

5 repair would occur is there woul d need to be a petition 5 you have any comrents that you'd |ike to nmake?

6 fromholland Towanship or fromthe property owners per Drain 6 ROAD OOMM SSI N JERRY .MM This is Jerry O nan

7 (ode. 7 wviththe Gtawa County Road Commi ssion.

8 If the project is asmall fix, let's say thereis a 8 ['mnot avare of any issues with the road drainage

9 small sinkhole that needs to be repaired, that would be |ess 9 on Holiday Drive

10 than 5,000 per mle, per Drain Code, that allows the county, 10 For the road commission, we are in favor of

11 per Drain (ode, just to take care of the project, wthout the 11 establishing these orphan systems and bringing theminto the

12 petition and Board of Determination process. 12 Véter Resources Commissioner's control.

13 So assessments for al| future projects will be nade 13 BOARD CHA R R CH VANDER KLCK (kay.  Thank you,

14 to Gtawa County, Gtawa Qounty Road Conmission, Holland 14 Jerry.

15  Township and property owners. 15 And then fromHol I and Township --

16 Thank you. 16 HOLLAND TOMSH P FIN DI RECTCR DOUG KU PERS.  Yes,

17 BOARD CHAR R CH VANDER KLOK Ckay, thank you, 17 Doug Kui per with Holland Townshi p.

18  Lucas. 18 So the township is systenatically seeking to bring

19 Any questions or comments, Ken, or Todd? 19 all these orphan drains under the jurisdiction of the Véter

20 BOARD SECRETARY KEN SQUTER  Yeah, Lucas, can 20 Resources Commssioner's office and that is the reason for

21 you-- I'malittle dense here. Can you tell nme what 21 the petition before you today

22 direction all of this flows and where it flows to? 22 BOARD CHAR R (H VANDER KLCK: Ckay, thank you.

23 ENG NEER LUCAS TTMER  Fromour review and from 23 And so, public comrent, the gentlenman in the back,

24 contour data, we were able to determne that Rchland Estates 24 if you would state your nane and your address pl ease

25 here flows into a stormsewer systemthat connects into the 25 M SCOIT NYHUS  Scott Nyhuis, 10125 Hol i day
Page 15 Page 17

1 proposed Foxwood No. 2. 1 Dive

2 These large properties here drain to the north by, 2 | guess ny only question right nowis sois the

3 and they'Il end up getting to this catch basin systemthat's 3 blue proposed or the blue al ready exist?

4 installed in the backyards of the residents of Foxwood No. 2. 4 ENG NEER LUCAS TIMER  That's a great question.

5 BOARD SECRETARY KEN SQUTER  And then where does it 5 S the blue, that blue already exists. Al that

6 togoonceit |eaves this particular area? 6 stormsewer infrastructure exists, but it's being proposed to

7 ENG NEER LUCAS TIMER ~ Good question.  So it flows 7 go froma private or an orphan systemto a county drain

8 inthis blue infrastructure here in the stormsewer and ends 8 system

9 up flowing north toward the Brower Drain. 9 MR SOOIT N\YHUS: Ckay.

10 BOARD SECRETARY KEN SQUTER  To the Brower Drain. 10 ENG NEER LUCAS TTMER ~ Good quest i on.

1 ENG NEER LUCAS TIMER ~ Yep. 1 BOARD CHA R R CH VANDER KLOK Ckay.  Yes, na' am

12 BOARD SECRETARY KEN SQUTER  Thank you. 12 Your name and address, please?

13 BOARD CHAIR R CH VANDER KLCK:  Todd? 13 M5 CARCL SOBNCBKI: Garol Sosnoski, 1'mat 10325

14 BOARD MEMBER TCDD WOLTERS:  No. No questi ons. 14 Hannah Drive, so I'min Rchland Estates.

15 BOARD CHA R R CH VANDER KLOK: (kay.  Before we do 15 ['ve only lived there since Gctober but | haven't

16 public coment, | don't believe we had a notion to linit 16 noticed anything that would, you know seemlike the drain

17 public coment to three ninutes. 17 systemwas in any way failing

18 And so "Il nake that notion. 18 And it just seens reasonable to ne though that we

19 BOARD MEMBER TADD WOLTERS:  Support. 19 woul d get underneath the jurisdiction in case there vere to

20 BOARD CHAIR R CH VANDER KLCK:  Moved and support ed 20 be sone kind of issue. | don't know about the nei ghboring

21 to linmt public coment to three ninutes. 21 conmunities, but it seens reasonable to me that we would go

22 Those in favor, say aye. 22 forward with comng under the jurisdiction of the Véter

23 BOARD MEMBER TADD WILTERS:  Aye. 23 Resources Conmi ssi oner.

24 BOARD CGHA R R CH VANDER KLCXK: Aye. 24 BOARD CHA R RICH VANDER LXK Ckay, thank you.

25 BOARD SECRETARY KEN SQUTER  Aye. 25 This gentlenen? Name and address, please?
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Page 20

1 M BB MLDER M nane is Bob Milder. And | live 1 of the Foxwood No. 2 Drain, as petitioned on My 21, 2021, is

2 at 10079 Holiday Drive. |'ve lived there since 1993. 2 necessary and conducive to the public health, convenience and

3 And | know of no water issues there. | know!| was 3 welfare.

4 concerned before | moved in, but the way that systemwas 4 ['Il make that motion, is that supported?

5 setup, there is no water issues in the basement. | don't 5 BOARD MEVBER TCDD WOLTERS:  Support

6 have any issues either. 6 BOARD CHAIR R CH VANDER KLCK: Moved and support ed.

7 So I'mfor this notion, that you do that, because 7 Al those in favor, say aye.

8 if sonething woul d happen to that main blue line going back 8 BOARD MEVBER TCDD WVOLTERS:  Aye.

9 there, it would affect all of us. 9 BOARD CHA R R CH VANDER LXK Aye.

10 So anyhow that's ny comrent. |'mglad to see this 10 BOARD SECRETARY KEN SQUTER  Aye.

11 happen, and I"'mfor it. 1 BOARD CHA R R CH VANDER KLCK And that is carried.

12 The county drain, | could have flooding fromthe 12 Then | want to ask Joe to just make a comment about

13 back side too, but that, with that culvert on 100th Sreet, 13 the appeal s process, if you woul d.

14 sothat's good. Sol'dlike to say, keep that as it is. 14 VATER RESOURCES OOM JCE BUSH  So | have to say

15 BOARD SECRETARY KEN SQUTER  Good, thank you.  Any 15 this at every neeting, at every Board of Determination that

16  comments from-- | think we've gotten everyone. 16 if somebody wanted to appeal today's decision, you can appeal

17 | woul d make a notion then to close the public 17 it through Grcuit Court, and you have ten days fromtoday if

18  comment tine. 18  somebody would nore than likely want to appeal it, you can by

19 I's that supported? 19 law

20 BOARD MEMBER TADD WLTERS:  Support ed. 20 Again, | appreciate everybody's tine here this

21 BOARD CHAIR R CH VANDER KLCK:  Moved and support ed 21 rmorning. And sone people ask, | put it on the record that

22 that we close the public coment tine. 22 vell, does this still happen today? Véll fromabout 2007 to

23 Al those in favor, say aye. 23 today, and thisis ny third terml'mworking on that 1'm

24 BOARD MEMBER TADD WILTERS:  Aye. 24 involved in now so we do reviewall the devel opnents. And

25 BOARD CHAIR R (H VANDER KLCK:  Aye. 25 anything that's been since under ny jurisdiction since 2013
Page 19 Page 21

1 BOARD SECRETARY KEN SQUTER  Aye. 1 it's been under ny jurisdiction as far as brought into the

2 BOARD CHAIR R (H VANDER KLCK: And now; Ken or 2 drain systemwhen it gets reviewed during the process of

3 Todd, do you have any comments? 3 being approved as a plat through the township. V& review

4 BOARD SECRETARY KEN SQUTER  Vél1 I'I1 go first. 4 every devel opnent technically in Gtawa Gounty for all the

5 Basicallyit seems like it nakes total sense, and nost of 5 townships, nost of the cities. Acouple cities ve don't

6 these have always made senses that people need a place for -- 6 they reviewtheir own

7 tocall if they got a problem 7 But one way or another when it comes under a county

8 And working for the road commission, | know|'ve 8 drain system that process is done now so we don't have to

9 given people the run around on occasion when | vas there 9 keep doing these forever. V're just trying to play catch-up

10 because of the fact that we didn't even know who had 10 fromthe '70s, '80s, '90s, even back in the '40s and ' 50s.

11 jurisdiction. Soif not under the drain conmissioner, he 1 So we're trying to catch up. It's not about

12 woul d send themto Hol land Township, or the township, and 12 governmental control, it's just about custoner service and

13 they just kind of ran around not know ng what to do. And 13 providing sonething we can help with down the road. Because

14 that's not really fair. 14 infrastructure will fail at some point because it's only --

15 S0 to get these under one entity, just nakes so 15 it only lasts as long as it can until it needs repaired.

16 much sense to ne that I'mtotally in favor of them 16 So again, we appreciate your tine, thank you

17 BOARD CHA R R CH VANDER KLXK: Ckay.  Todd? 17 BOARD CHAR R CH VANDER KLCK:  Thank you, Joe.

18 BOARD MEMBER TADD WILTERS.  Yeah, |'min favor of 18 V¢ are adjourned.

19 this proposal as well. | think it wll protect the folks in 19 M5, CARCL SOBNOBKI: | just have a question. So do

20 Rchland alittle bit nore than where they are at right now 20 | understand correctly that you voted in favor of taking it

21 so we can have a little quicker response if something does go 21 under the jurisdiction?

22 wong. 22 BOARD CHAIR R (H VANDER KLCK:  That's correct.

23 BOARD CHA R R CH VANDER KLCK:  Good. | woul d agree 23 M5, CARCL SOSNOBKI: And then one other question.

24 vith that. And hearing also the public coment, | woul d make 24 You nmentioned where people could call if they did have some

25 the motion that the location, establishment and construction 25 kind of energency or situation. \ere would they call for
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1 that?
2 WATER RESOURCES OO JCE BUSH  The Gitawa Gounty
3 Véter Resources Comm ssioner office.
4 M5, CARCL SOBNOSKI:  Ckay.
5 WATER RESOLRCES OO JCE BUSH My departrent, or
6 9-1-1. They know howto get ahold of me. If it's an
7 energency, nake sure they call nme. Because they're either
8 going to call the road coomission or they're going to call ne
9 or both. And we'll both show up.
10 (Board of Determnation - Foxwood No. 2 Drain -
1 adjourned at 11:10 a.m)
12
13
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